Public Document Pack

° Civic Centre,

Arnot Hill Park,

e lng Arnold,
Nottingh hi

Borough Council ofting [\Tcr-‘,nSS Gﬁj

Agenda

Joint Consultative and Safety
Commuittee

Date: Thursday 9 January 2014

Time: 5.30 pm

Place: Committee Room

For any further information please contact:
Lyndsey Parnell

Members' Services Officer

0115901 3910

Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3910 if you need it in large print, audio
or another format.



Joint Consultative and Safety Committee

Membership
Chair Councillor Steve Ainley
Vice-Chair Councillor Emily Bailey

Councillor Paul Feeney
Councillor John Parr
Councillor Roland Spencer
Councillor Sarah Tomlinson
Councillor John Truscott



AGENDA Page

Apologies for Absence.

To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 26 1-4
November 2013.

Declaration of Interests.
Living Wage- Commencement of Consultation for Implementation 5-14

Report of the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and the Service Manager,
Organisational Development.

Any other item which the Chairman considers urgent.
Exclusion of the Press and Public

To move that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the
public and press be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the
ensuing report on the grounds that the report involves the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972.

Leisure Centre Management Restructure 15 -28
Report of Corporate Director
Development Management Restructure 29 - 58

Report of Corporate Director



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 2

MINUTES
JOINT CONSULTATIVE AND SAFETY COMMITTEE

Tuesday 26 November 2013

Councillor Steve Ainley (Chair)

Present: Councillor Emily Bailey Councillor Roland Spencer
Councillor John Parr Councillor John Truscott
Unison: Alan Green Gill Morley

Alison Markowski

Absent: Councillor Sarah Tomlinson
Officers in Attendance: D Archer, S Bray, L Parnell and B Saunders
19 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Tomlinson.

20 TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE
MEETING HELD ON 27 AUGUST 2013.

The Service Manager, Organisational Development, updated Members
on the implementation of the Substance Misuse Policy, which, having
been approved by the Appointments and Conditions of Service
Committee, will come into force on the 1% of January 2014, and provided
further information on the staff survey as requested by Members.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be
approved as a correct record.

21 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
None.
22 CURRENT HEALTH AND SAFETY ISSUES

The Borough Health and Safety Officer provided a verbal report to
Committee of his work over the quarter, including, but not limited to,
training delivered, audits undertaken and accidents reported.

Members thanked the Health and Safety Officer for his work and wished
him well for his retirement.

Page 1



23

24

25

26

RESOLVED:
To note the information.
FEEDBACK FROM EMPLOYEE CONFERENCE

Consideration was given to a report of the Service Manager,
Organisational Development, which had been circulated prior to the
meeting, providing feedback from the recent Employee Conference.

RESOLVED:

To note the information.

PROPOSAL TO INTRODUCE THE LIVING WAGE

The Service Manager, Organisational Development, presented a report,
which had been circulated prior to the meeting, informing the committee
of the intention to pay the Living Wage from the 1% of April 2014 and
confirming the process proposed for implementation.

RESOLVED:

To note the information.

GEDLING BOROUGH COUNCIL TRAVEL PLAN

Corporate Director, Stephen Bray, presented a report, which had been
circulated prior to the meeting, seeking the Committees views on the
draft Gedling Borough Council Travel Plan.

The Corporate Director invited the Committee to put forward their views
and asked that any comments or suggestions be made no later than
Friday the 13" of December 2013.

RESOLVED:

To note the information.

CURRENT SICKNESS ABSENCE ISSUES

The Service Manager, Organisational Development, presented a report,
which has been circulated prior to the meeting, outlining current issues
in sickness absence.

The Service Manager confirmed that a package of training had been
delivered to Manager's in key areas, covering, among other things,

effectively managing sickness absence.

RESOLVED:

Page 2



27

28

29

To note the information.

CURRENT STAFFING ISSUES

Councillor Bailey left the meeting.

The Service Manager, Organisation Development, gave a verbal report
on current staffing issues, including on the submission of an NJE pay
claim by the Unions and the forthcoming training and employee awards
due to be held on the 12" of December from 12.30pm.

RESOLVED:

To note the information.

MINOR CHANGES TO THE ESTABLISHMENT THAT HAVE BEEN
AGREED BY THE CHAIR AND TRADE UNIONS OUTSIDE OF THE
FULL JCSC PROCESS.

Consideration was given to a report of the Service Manager,
Organisational Development, which had been circulated prior to the
meeting, outlining minor changes to the Establishment that had been
agreed by the Chair and Trade Unions.

The Chair discussed with Members the need to make decisions outside
of the formal process on occasion and informed them, that going
forward, he may consult them on such matters by email.

RESOLVED:

To note the information.

ANY OTHER ITEM WHICH THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT.

None.

The meeting finished at 6.55 pm

Signed by Chair:
Date:

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

Gedling

Borough Council

Report to: Joint Consultative and Safety Committee
Subject: Living Wage; commencement of consultation for implementation
Date: 9 January 2014

Author: Chief Executive
Corporate Director (Mark Kimberley)
Service Manager- Organisational Development

. Purpose of the report

To introduce to the Joint Consultative and Safety Committee (JCSC), proposals for
implementation of the Living Wage with effect from 1 April 2014 and to commence
formal consultation on these proposals with the recognised trade unions. The
proposal to implement the Living Wage is very much a member-led initiative and
consequently these detailed proposals for consultation have been formulated by the
Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee. Furthermore, the proposals are
endorsed by the Council’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT).

As the proposals do include material changes to terms and conditions of particular
groups of employees, a full consultation process is recommended commencing 9
January and concluding at the programmed JCSC meeting of 25 February 2014 (47
days in total). At the close of this consultation period the JCSC will meet again to
accept any comments made by the trade unions and to make any recommendations
that they see as appropriate to the Appointments and Conditions of Service
Committee in order to help inform any decisions made by that committee in respect
to final implementation of the proposals together with any associated terms and
conditions of employment.

. Background
The week commencing 4 November 2013 was “Living Wage Week”.

The “Living Wage” is set annually by the Living Wage Foundation and represents the
hourly rate of pay that is deemed to provide workers with a wage that can meet the
basic costs of living.

During this week a number of national and local announcements were made. Of
particular relevance was the national announcement that the Living Wage outside
London would rise by 20 pence from £7.45 to £7.65 per hour and, locally, the Leader
of our Council announced his intention to introduce the Living Wage as part of the
2014/15 budget process.

Page 5



In considering the introduction of the living wage, there are a number of factors to
take into account that are covered in the following report. Clearly this local
commitment has relevance from social, political, and economic perspectives and the
detail of its implementation to recognise all of these needs is complex. Included in
the implementation proposed here are associated issues that relate to local pay
banding together with terms and conditions of employment.

. Proposed implementation

The following proposals are made by the Appointments and Service Committee for
the implementation of the Living Wage at Gedling Borough Council. All proposals

are supported by Senior Leadership Team and can be met within budget plans for

2014/15.

3.1 The rate to be paid

ACSC proposal: To pay at the new rate of £7.65 as this will be the national Living
Wage rate at the proposed date of implementation, 1 April 2014.

3.2 Placing the Living Wage rate into our pay structure

ACSC proposal: The Living Wage of £7.65 is not a recognised pay point within
the national pay spine applied by the council, however the following
implementation method is proposed. This proposal does not have any
disproportionate negative equality impact relating to “protected characteristics” a
defined in the Equality Act. This is particularly relevant to gender. Appendix 1
shows a completed Equality Impact Statement based on the proposal made by
the ACSC.

The proposal is to enrich all jobs to ensure that they achieve at least pay Band 2
and create a new local pay point (spinal column point 10a) equivalent to the Living
Wage at £7.65 per hour. In order not to have excessively long pay grades (which
can be disproportionately detrimental impact in respect to equality), it is also
proposed to make minor alteration to the grade break points to leave only three
Spinal Column Points (SCPs) in Band 2, as is the case in every other grade above
it.

In effect, this proposal should have limited or no effect on the job evaluation
relating to current grades with the main benefit being that all jobs (as a matter of
local policy) are enriched to achieve at least pay Band 2 which will contain the
Living Wage new pay point. While the primary purpose of introducing the living
wage is to address the issue of low pay, this approach of “something for
something” could be regarded as striking the right balance given the financial
circumstances of the Council. Jobs would be enriched to add more interest and a
higher rate of pay and the organisation can expect a more flexible and skilled
workforce.

Page 6



This option is shown below for illustrative purposes and using £7.65 as the Living
Wage rate:

Current pay structure Proposed pay structure
Band 1 SCP £/hour Band 1 SCP £/hour
4 deleted 5 6.4454
5 6.4454 6 6.5382
6 6.5382 7 6.6942
Band 2 7 6.6942 8 6.9046
8 6.9046 Band 2 9 7.1140
9 7.1140 10 7.2633
10 7.2633 10a (local) 7.6500
Band 3 11 7.7127 Band 3 11 7.7127
12 7.8729 12 7.8729
13 8.0849 13 8.0849

By retaining all pay bands and pay points, the integrity of the job evaluation
scheme and pay line is maintained and there is future flexibility to use these lower
points, perhaps for example, for directly-employed apprentices or interns.

A further ACSC proposal to ensure that all employees are paid at the 2013/14
Living Wage is that the following two pay statements are supported for formal
adoption:

“In introducing these changes to enrich all existing jobs to ensure that they are
paid within pay Band 2, the council will not require an affected employee to “apply
for their own job” but instead will simply re-grade employees into Band 2. If
additional training is required to help the employee to meet the demands of the
changed role, this will be provided over time and the employee will be properly
supported to achieve this.”

“It is the policy of the council when evaluating jobs (not training jobs such as
apprentices or internships) to enrich those jobs to ensure that they fall within pay
Band 2 as a minimum pay grade and that furthermore, when the job is graded
within this pay band, any and all employees and workers will be paid at spinal
column point 10a”.

This particular method of implementing the concept of the Living Wage into our
pay structures is seen as particularly attractive as it provides cost control, some
degree of defence against equality claims in respect to job evaluation and also
introduces the idea of responsibility to the tax-payer in that we are paying a higher
rate of pay, but expecting some return from this.

Page 7



3.3 Casual work

ACSC Proposal: The payment of casual work at a rate below Living Wage is
possible within the pay structures proposed but to do this “muddies the water” in
respect to the intention to be a Living Wage employer at 1 April 2014. Itis
therefore the view of the ACSC that all casual work should also be paid at a
minimum rate of SCP 10a and that the policy statements outlined above, are both
adopted from 1 April 2014 and applied equally to casual work.

3.4 Application of the national (NJC) pay award (from 1 April 2014)

ACSC Proposal: The cycle of pay uplift differs between the Living Wage
Foundation (uplift in November each year) and the National Joint Council (NJC)
annual pay award (April each year). In order to deal with the difficult position
created by these asynchronous pay cycles, it is the view of the ACSC that the
NJC pay award for 2014/15 should be applied to a new local pay point 10a that
might be created to reflect the Living Wage rate at £7.65. It is also the proposal,
that any national award made in subsequent years (2015/16 and thereafter)
should be applied to all current pay points including a local point 10a.

3.5 Future application of Living Wage awards

ACSC proposal: The Living Wage is recalculated each year in November. In
recent years, the increase in rate has far outstripped pay awards made to local
government workers. To continue to apply the Living Wage rate as annually
reviewed will have a number of effects locally including:

Additional and uncontrolled cost to the organisation at a time of financial
stringency and potential job losses.

Increased difficulty from an equal pay perspective in applying an elevated Living
Wage into our existing pay scales. Should the current pattern of Living Wage/
NJC pay awards continue, it is likely that the Living Wage pay point would need to
be placed into pay Band 3. If this were to be the case then the current
recommended model of “job enrichment” would have to be further extended which
may become difficult in that existing employees may find it much more difficult to
be able to meet all of the demands of a higher graded job. If the Living Wage was
to be adopted each year going forwards, the “job enrichment” model is not
recommended and another model to deal with the pay grading issues would need
to be adopted.

The idea of the Living Wage rate is still somewhat in its infancy, however, there is
clear interest in this issue in a number of quarters including national government.
It is likely that there may be significant developments nationally (both through
central government and local government pay bargaining) that may affect how the
Living Wage is applied and because of this uncertainty it may not be prudent to
commit at this stage to application of the Living Wage on an automatic basis each
year.

Page 8



Essentially, the option is to either commit now to application of the Living Wage
each year (with an associated review of how this might be achieved financially
and from a pay policy perspective) or to apply the Living Wage rate from 1 April
2014 but then to review periodically, but not annually, thereafter and on balance,
because of the issues identified above, the ACSC proposal is that the Living
Wage be applied from 1 April 2014 (at £7.65 per hour plus any pay uplift agreed
as part of the annual NJC settlement) and that this rate is then reconsidered
periodically, but without commitment to frequency at this stage.

3.6 Living Wage and working practices

ACSC Proposal: Due to financial challenges facing the organisation, changes to
working practices are being considered in all service areas. Some changes to
working practices that will be necessary as part of service review occur in teams
where, if the “job enrichment” model is supported, there is particular relevance. In
particular, in Waste Services the refuse rounds are effectively balanced to achieve
service delivery within a normal 37 hour week. The refuse loaders, through
historic agreement, are paid two hours’ additional “contractual overtime” equating
to three hours’ pay. This additional time is not needed for service delivery now
and can no longer be sustained. All refuse loaders are currently paid within

Band 1 and as such would benefit from any measures taken to apply the Living
Wage.

The ACSC has considered this difficult issue and proposes the following
implementation in respect to changes to working practices:

* To implement the “job enrichment” programme as outlined in the earlier parts
of this paper

+ Toimplement the removal to contractual overtime arrangements concurrently
with implementation of Living Wage arrangements for refuse loaders.

* That working practices are reviewed in all other areas where contractual
overtime arrangements apply and where possible and at an appropriate time,
move the working week to a standard 37-hour basis.

The benéefit of co-ordinating the exercise for refuse workers is that changes to pay
and conditions of service happen at a single point in time and from the 1 Apiril,
these employees would be approximately £700 per year better off (after tax) whilst
working a shorter week.

4. Financial Comments
The introduction of the Living Wage will not come without additional cost, however,
with the proposals recommended above it is the intention that with re-modelled jobs,
rather than just adding cost to the pay bill, there will be more pay given for
undertaking work of a higher value. There will an arrangement of “something for
something”.

If local spinal column point 10a is set at £7.65 per hour, the estimated cost of moving

all affected contracted employees to this point is £146,000. In addition, the
estimated cost of moving casual workers is £26,600 making a total cost of £172,600.

Page 9



Savings arising from the proposed changes to refuse loaders’ working conditions
(removal of contracted overtime) are estimated at £32,000 per annum.

In summary, if both of the above proposals are supported and if the Living Wage is
fully applied to all jobs the estimated net cost to the council will be £140,600.

If the annual NJC pay award for 2014/15 is applied to the new local pay point 10a as
recommended, this will modify the above costs and savings, depending on the size
of any such award.

. Equality Impact of proposals
Appendix 1 shows the Equality Impact Assessment of the proposals made within this
report.

There are 71 contracted employees currently within pay Band 1 (a total of 131
including casual workers) and 62 contracted employees in pay Band 2 (209 in total
including casual workers).

Of the contracted employees in pay Band 1, 45% are female, and in pay Band 2 this
figure is 69 %.

In essence, the proposals will mean the addition of a pay point at the top of Band 2
with the slight realignment of pay points within Band 2 to ensure that the pay grade is
not too long (and is in accord with other pay bands) which means that the bottom
pay point of Band 2 is two spinal column points greater. If adopted, the pay
statement proposed will mean that all employees in pay Band 2 are placed at the top
pay point within the grade to ensure that the pay policy of the Council relating to
Living Wage is met.

Applying these measures will mean that all employees (other than training posts) are
moved out of Band 1. This will have a positive effect for all employees albeit there is
a slightly more beneficial effect to the male workforce. The positive changes
experienced by the employees already in Band 2 will apply more favourably to
female employees in terms of proportion.

The changes proposed do not differentiate between full and part-time work patterns.

If the proposals are adopted, there will be 133 contracted employees in the new
Band 2 (based on current figures), 56% of whom will be female. The rise in pay in
this new Band (and the placing of Band 1 employees into the new Band 2) does not
carry adverse impact to our female workforce.

Potential differential impact on other protected criteria as defined in the Equality Act
is also examined in the impact assessment shown in Appendix 1 but none is
identified.

As part of the proposals, there are also changes to working conditions outlined that
will affect Refuse Loaders, a job that is held exclusively by men. These changes to
overtime arrangements are required to meet budgetary demands. If these changes
are made at the same time as introduction of the Living Wage, affected employees

will still remain substantially better off, both financially and in respect to working a

Page 10



shorter working week. Removal of all such overtime arrangements will be the
subject of consultation in due course. Although identified for implementation at the
same time as this Living Wage proposal as an expedient measure, this part of the
proposal is not linked specifically to the application of the Living Wage from an
equality impact perspective.

The job evaluation principles are not compromised by this approach as employees
are moved into Band 2 by the addition of correctly-evaluated tasks that will enrich the
work of all employees currently employed within Band 1.

. Summary of proposals for consultation
The Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee proposes the following
principles for consultation through the Joint Consultative and Safety Committee.

5.1
5.2
5.3
5.4
5.5
5.6
5.7
5.8
5.9

5.10

To pay a Living Wage from 1 April 2014 at the rate of £7.65.

To create a local pay point, 10a set at £7.65 with effect from 1 April 2014.

To amend the local pay scales as identified in section 3.2.

To adopt the model of “job enrichment” for all current Band 1 posts to move
them to within the new Band 2.

To adopt the policy statement (section 3.2) to place contracted employees at
local pay point 10a as a minimum.

To adopt the policy statement (section 3.2) to move existing employees easily
into the new re-graded jobs.

To make payment to casual workers at a minimum rate of local pay point 10a.
To set the local pay point 10a at £7.65 with effect from 1 April 2014 and to
apply to this pay point, any pay award derived from NJC pay bargaining for
the year 2014/15 and thereafter.

To adopt the Living Wage at £7.65 from 1 April 2014 and to periodically
review this arrangement and how it applies to pay locally.

To make appropriate changes to working practices as outlined in section 3.6
concurrently with the introduction of the Living Wage.

. Recommendation

The Committee is asked to:

Note the content of the report and the proposals made.

Receive initial comments from union representatives.

Invite trade union representatives to consider the proposals and to forward
comment or suggestion to the Corporate Director that will be reported back to,
and considered by this JCSC towards the end of the formal consultation
period.

Page 11



Appendix 1

EQUALITY IMPACT NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Policy/Service/Procedure to be Introduction of Living Wage
assessed
Assessment completed by: David Archer

Aims/objectives of the Policy/Service/Procedure

To introduce the Living Wage at Gedling Borough Council at 1 April 2014 through the
enrichment of all Band 1 jobs to ensure that all employees carry out work of at least
Band 2 value and the introduction of a new local pay point within Band 2 equating to
the Living Wage rate at 1 April 2014.

Key Performance Indicator Current Target
Performance

Who are the customers and stakeholders of this service?
Employees in general and specifically those currently employed within pay Bands 1
and 2.

Detail below what information you already have about the impact this change
to service delivery has on people as defined in the following list of protected
criteria (including results from consultation, complaints, census etc):

Age A large proportion of jobs in Bands 1 and 2 are leisure
centre based, specifically Leisure Attendants. Refuse
Loader jobs also account for a large proportion of Band 1
posts. Due to their nature, these jobs are often occupied by
younger employees.

Disability No employees within Bands 1 or 2 have declared a
disability
Gender No information available.

Reassignment

Pregnancy and There are no cases of maternity in these pay bands.
maternity

Page 12




Marriage and civil
partnership

No effective data held.

Race

Of the 25 employees who declare their background as not
being “White; UK”, 6 people currently work in Band 1 or 2
jobs (approximately 25%). This figure is proportionate in
that Band 1 and 2 posts (133 contracted employees)
accounts for about 25% of the total headcount of 540.

Religion or belief

No effective data held

Gender

whom would be female.

Current Band 1: 71 contracted employees (total of 131
including casual workers). 45% female

Current Band 2: 62 contracted employees (total of 209
including casual workers) 69% female

Moving all employees to a new Band 2 would mean 133
contracted employees being paid within the band, 56% of

Sexual orientation

No effective data held

How will this change to service impact on people as defined in the following
list of protected criteria:

Positive impact

Negative impact

Age Slight positive effect for None
younger employees.
Disability None None
Gender Unknown (no impact Unknown (no impact

Reassignment

anticipated)

anticipated)

Pregnancy and
maternity

None

None

Marriage and civil
partnership

Unknown (no impact
anticipated)

Unknown (no impact
anticipated)

Race

No disproportionate impact

No disproportionate impact

Religion or belief

Unknown (no impact
anticipated)

Unknown (no impact
anticipated)

Gender Slightly higher proportion of | None; all employees will be
female employees will enjoy | financially better off
positive impact on pay.
(Changes to overtime working
arrangements for Refuse
Loaders will affect only men as
there are no female job
holders)
Sexual Unknown (no impact Unknown (no impact
orientation anticipated) anticipated)

Page 13




What changes could be made to the policy/service/lprocedure to address any
negative impacts?

The timing of the introduction to changes to the overtime working arrangements for
Refuse Loaders (removal of need to undertake contractual overtime) to coincide with
implementation of the Living Wage in April 2014 will ensure that this occupational
group still remains financially better off as well as enjoying a shorter working week.

What monitoring will be carried out to ensure this policy/service/procedure
meets diverse needs

The proposal is that the Living Wage rate is reviewed periodically in future years.

What actions will be included in your service plan arising from this
assessment?

Action Outcome Date Who

Implementation of Living | Gedling Council will pay the | 01.04.14 | D Archer
Wage in accordance with | Living Wage at 1 April 2014
agreed policy

Are you satisfied that all aspects of this proposed change to service delivery
have been thoroughly assessed for all the protected criteria and that no further
investigation is required? Yes

If no then a fuller impact assessment is required.

Signed...... DJ Archer......ccoiiiiii e (manager)
Signed....... DJ Archer......... Corporate Equality Representative)

Page 14




Agenda ltem 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



	Agenda
	2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2013.
	4 Living Wage- Commencement of Consultation for Implementation
	7 Leisure Centre Management Restructure
	8 Development Management Restructure

